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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six months period ended 30 June 2020.

During the period under review, the global economy was adversely
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 (the “Outbreak”). The Outbreak has
been causing material disruptions almost to every aspect of the Group’s
operations. On top of the weakening demand caused by the economic
recession, the tightened public health measures including work from
home and social distancing policies had also caused postponements
or cancellations of various business meetings and sales activities which
resulted in the delay in project delivery and new contract conclusion.

As a result, the Group’s overall revenue dropped by HK$16.4 million, or
12.3% to HK$117.4 million (2019: HK$133.8 million). The Group’s gross
profit accordingly recorded a decrease of HK$9.2 million, or 12.2% to
HK$65.8 million (2019: HK$75.0 million) while the gross profit margin
maintained at 56.1% (2019: 56.0%).

The sharp economic contraction had also been reflected in the valuation
of the Group’s financial assets and investment properties which had
incurred losses of HK$4.1 million (2019: gains of HK$4.4 million).

Benefiting from the HK$2.4 million (2019: Nil) wage subsidies granted
by the HKSAR Government (the “Government”) under the Employment
Support Scheme (the “ESS”) during the reporting period, the Group’s
other income and gains increased by HK$1.0 million, or 21.4% to HK$5.7
million (2019: HK$4.7 million).

Overall expenses and tax provision had been reduced owing to better
cost control by the Group and more accommodative policies launched by
the PRC and HKSAR governments.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders reduced by 31.0% to HK$19.9 million (2019:
HK$28.8 million). The basic earnings per share also dropped to 8.03 HK
cents (2019: 11.66 HK cents).

In view of the solid cash position of the Group, the Board declared
the distribution of an interim dividend of HK$0.05 (2019: HK$0.09) per
ordinary share for the six months period ended 30 June 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The Group’s Application Software' business recorded a moderate drop in
both revenue and profit contributions for the reporting period.

With backlog order carried forward from previous year, the performance
of Human Resources Management Software (“HRMS”) business in Hong
Kong was comparable with the same period last year. However, the HRMS
business in Mainland China impacted seriously by the Outbreak and
revenue generated from Mainland China decreased by around 30% in
first quarter. The situation had been gradually improving as the spread of
the coronavirus was mostly under control in the second quarter.

The management observed that quite a number of potential and existing
customers of the business have slowed down their business activities
and decided to defer their plan for new HRMS and enhancement of the
existing systems. Despite the weakened demand, the business still kept
its pace with expansion of customer base. During the reporting period,
contracts have been awarded from prestigious new customers from
diversified industry sectors, including one of the largest logistic company,
a German luxury fashion brand and a famous fast food chain.

Considering the current backlog orders and recurring maintenance
contracts on hand, the management believed that the HRMS business will
remain stable in the second half of the year and will endeavor to restore
its growth momentum when the market is resumed from the COVID-19
pandemic situation.

The Outbreak had turned retail industries into frozen mode. Demand
for the Group’s Enterprise Retail Management Software (“ERMS”) on-
premise software was markedly weakened and the business recorded
double-digit fall in both revenue and profit contributions. The recovery
of the retail industry may take a considerably long period of time and the
management anticipated that the performance of the ERMS business will
continue to be under pressure for the remaining of the year.

Nevertheless, the innovation and productivity gain brought along by the
new Mobile POS (“mPOS") Module of ChainStorePlus with more flexible
software licensing model continued to attract market interest. Several
pilot of mMPOS were implemented successfully during the reporting
period. It is expected that mPOS may bring additional revenue stream for
the Group in the near future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

Benefiting from the recurring Software as a Service (“SaaS”) income
and professional services backlog brought forward, the revenue of
the Group's Enterprise Procurement Management Software (“EPMS”)
business recorded double-digit growth during the reporting period. The
Group had deployed various projects successfully and secured repeated
orders for additional services from both quasi-government organisations
and commercial sectors. However, the Outbreak is causing most of the
potential new customers to defer their procurement processes. It is
anticipated that a few of them may resume the processes that may bring
new opportunities to the EPMS business in the second half of the year.

The performance of the Group’s Enterprise Information Management
Software (“EIMS”) business was stable comparing with the same period
last year. The strong customer base and sustainable prospects from
Hong Kong and Macau public sectors have established a relatively stable
environment to the EIMS business during the unfavorable economic
atmosphere. It is anticipated that the business would remain steady in
the second half of the year.

With further expansion of the open technology eco-system, the Group’s
research and development (“R&D") team has been developing the
Human Capital Management (the “HCM") platform into an open platform
focusing on performance tuning and improving information security.
Beyond just a platform that connects all our products, it is also an open
platform to connect with our partners to provide a more integrated
business solutions to our customers. For example, payroll partners can
utilise the advanced platform as a consolidated human resource portal
for a multi-region HCM solution. Functions of office administration and
finance have been included in the enhanced platform to provide expense
claim, purchase request and service request modules.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services

The revenue and profit contribution of the Group’s Solutions and
Integration Services? business dropped by 14.4% and 22.6% respectively
for the reporting period.

The Managed Services? under the Group’s Solutions Services business
kept generating stable maintenance revenue from the second 10-year
services contract (the “Contract”) of the Customer Care and Billing System
(“CCBS”) for the Water Supplies Department under the Government.
However, due to the delays in contract award, the revenue generated
from the variation orders was reduced during the reporting period.

The delivery schedule of software enhancements on the CCBS had been
slipped further in the wake of the Outbreak. The management is working
on a revised schedule according to the current situation and will put
extra attention and best endeavors to meet the revised implementation
schedule. During the reporting period, related development costs of
around HK$4.3 million had been capitalised as deferred development
costs.

The performance of Development Services? under the Group’s Solutions
Services business was stable during the reporting period. A number of
new orders were secure from various government organisations and
a public transportation body during the reporting period. In addition,
the management anticipated that a few projects carried forward from
previous years could reach the delivery milestones from which potential
new maintenance incomes would be generated in the near future.

The performance of the Group’s Integration Services? business in the PRC
was comparable with the same period last year.

The Outbreak caused cancellation of various tradeshows in Hong Kong
which adversely affected the service revenue earned by the Group’s BPO?
business. The management had deployed almost all the related resources
to support other businesses of the Group in order to minimise the related
cost.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EEHmE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

e-Service and related business

As a result of global economic recession and drop in trading activities,
the Group’s GETS* business recorded fall in both revenue and profit
contribution during the reporting period.

The revenue drop was also due to the termination of the collaboration
with Hongkong Post in providing paper-to-electronic trade declaration
services in early 2020 but the impact to the profit contribution was
minimal. Despite the downturn, the market share of the business was
stably maintained. The management will continue to find ways to
transform the business in order to improve its performance in long term.

Investments

During the reporting period, the Group recorded significant drop in rental
income and valuation losses from investment properties and financial
assets resulting in loss of HK$4.5 million (2019: profit of HK$5.6 million) to
the Group’s Investments segment.

PROSPECT

The impacts of coronavirus, economic recession and political instability in
Hong Kong will continue to post threats to the Group. The management
is of the view that the overall difficult business environment may last for
some time. The Group will continue to stay alert with strengthened risk
and business continuity management, respond rapidly to the changes
of the surrounding environments in order to navigate through this crisis
and resume our growth in the post COVID-19 period.
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Footnotes:

1

The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of
application software and e-business services for enterprises including (i)
the provision of enterprise application software with implementation and
ongoing support services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise
Procurement Management, Enterprise Information Management and
Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the “Application Software”); and
(i) the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"), cloud services and
other related value added services (collectively the “e-Service and related
business”).

The Group'’s Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i)
Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; (i) Managed Services for the provision
of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; (iii) business
process outsourcing (“BPO”) services; and (iv) Integration Services for the
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design,
implementation and ongoing support services.

The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services for the
operations and support of specific business functions or processes of
customers.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a licence (the “GETS Licence”)
from the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group's GETS License was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of
additional six years until the end of 2024.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

The Group’s revenue dropped by HK$16.4 million, or 12.3% to HK$117.4
million (2019: HK$133.8 million) during the reporting period.

The decrease in overall revenue of the Group was primarily due to the
delay in project delivery and new contract conclusion because of the
Outbreak. The Group's gross profit also decreased by HK$9.2 million, or
12.2% to HK$65.8 million (2019: HK$75.0 million) while the gross profit
margin maintained at 56.1% (2019: 56.0%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other income and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

Other income and gains, net increased by 21.4% to HK$5.7 million
(2019: HK$4.7 million). The change was due to the mixed effects of the
recognition of the wage subsidies of HK$2.4 million (2019: Nil) granted
by the Government under the ESS and decrease in bank interest income,
dividend incomes and tax refund.

On the contrary, the sharp economic contraction had resulted in the
losses of HK$4.1 million (2019: gains of HK$4.4 million) to the valuation of
the Group’s financial assets and investment properties.

Expenses

Primarily due to decrease in incentive driven staff costs and reduced
marketing activities, the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
decreased by 4.9% to HK$16.6 million (2019: HK$17.4 million).

Owing to better cost control by the Group and more accommodative
policies launched by the PRC and HKSAR governments, the overall
general and administrative expenses were reduced by 5.7% to HK$27.9
million (2019: HK$29.6 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense

Primarily due to the reversal of over-provision and the decrease in
assessable profits being generated, the income tax recognised tax credit
of HK$0.5 million (2019: tax expense of HK$4.4 million).

The Group's overall effective tax rate for the tax charge in 2020 was
around -2.6%, whereas in 2019 was 13.1%. The effective tax rate was
lower than the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types
of onshore incomes, including dividend and bank interest incomes were
not subject to the Hong Kong profits tax. Besides, the R&D activities of
certain local subsidiaries of the Group were assessed as qualifying R&D
activities and thus entitled enhanced tax deductions under the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance. The effective tax rate had further
been driven down by the recognition of deferred tax credit arising from
amortisation of other intangible assets.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders reduced significantly
by 31.0% to HK$19.9 million (2019: HK$28.8 million) while the net profit
margin (profit for the period attributable to shareholders divided by the
revenue) also dropped to 16.9% (2019: 21.5%). The fall was in line with
the decrease in gross profit and the increase in valuation losses incurred
to the Group’s investment properties and financial assets.

Non-current assets

Primarily due to the depreciation of right-of-use assets and the valuation
loss of investment properties, the Group’s non-current assets as at 30
June 2020 decreased slightly by 1.6% to HK$277.9 million (31 December
2019: HK$282.4 million).

Current assets

No significant change was noted to the Group’s current assets as at 30
June 2020 when compared with the position as at 31 December 2019.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables

and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EEHmE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current liabilities

Primarily due to the combined effect of the increase in contract liabilities
derived from various maintenance services to be provided by the Group’s
Solutions business and the decrease in tax payable following various tax
payments during the period, the Group’s current liabilities as at 30 June
2020 decreased slightly by 1.3% to HK$134.5 million (31 December 2019:
HK$136.3 million).

Non-current liabilities

The Group’s non-current liabilities as at 30 June 2020 dropped by 22.6%
to HK$12.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$16.3 million) following the
recognition of lease liabilities over the lease term.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets and segment liabilities of Applications Services business
dropped in line with the decrease in other intangible assets, trade
receivables, accruals and contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
owing to the increase in deferred development costs and trade
receivables while the segment liabilities of the business increased in line
with the increase in trade payables and contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Investments business dropped because of the disposal
of a money market certificate acquired last year and the fair value losses
recorded for both investment properties and financial assets.

Equity

Total equity as at 30 June 2020 was slightly increased by HK$0.6 million,
or 0.1% to HK$482.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$481.4 million).
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TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$63.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$64.2 million), listed
equity securities of HK$7.4 million (31 December 2019: HK$12.7 million)
and bank balances of HK$2.5 million (31 December 2019: HK$2.5 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/performance
bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the Company in
aggregate of HK$112.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$112.0 million) of
which HK$21.4 million (31 December 2019: HK$21.7 million) have been
utilised as at 30 June 2020.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were HK$249.3
million (31 December 2019: HK$200.7 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and United States dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging
policies, as these currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation
risks. Nevertheless, the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange
exposures closely and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure
in order to minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2019: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liabilities was 2.6 (31 December 2019: 2.6) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 23.4% (31
December 2019: 24.1%).
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FEHRE(E)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2020 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2019 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2020, the Group employed 386 full time employees
and 6 contract-based employees (31 December 2019: 407 full time
employees and 5 contract-based employees).

As at 30 June 2020, the Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations
as well as retain them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the period and up to the date of this report.
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2020.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared the payment of an interim dividend of HK$0.05 (2019:
an interim dividend of HK$0.09) per ordinary share for the six months
ended 30 June 2020.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
2 September 2020 to Thursday, 3 September 2020, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1 September 2020. The
dividend will be distributed on or about Wednesday, 16 September 2020
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Thursday, 3 September 2020.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 August 2020
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRmRAIRER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
together with the comparative figures. These unaudited condensed
consolidated interim results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit

M EGEBEAERAR ((ARADESFSE
([E=2 ) BUZNARBREKE LR (5
BIAEBDBEE-_T-_TFA=FTAHL
NEAZARERERARATHEEER
HEHT - HEREEZERESHIEE
ERBARRESZESRM -

committee.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT B4R AEHER
ORLOSS
For the six months ended 30 June
BZEAB=+HIEAEA
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REERZ) (RIEEZ)
Notes HKS$’000 HKS’000
it FET FET
REVENUE WA 5 117,408 133,848
Cost of sales and services HE KRR (51,591) (58,866)
Gross profit EF 65,817 74,982
Other income and gains, net H AU A R a5 5 58 5 5,662 4,664
Foreign exchange differences, net M H R (104) (246)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AFERE, (B18) F58 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELERAEY
profit or loss s EE (2,695) 1,410
Investment properties TEMEE (1,425) 3,000
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HRAX (16,592) (17,443)
General and administrative expenses, net — & & 77 58 3 JF 58 (27,922) (29,605)
Finance costs s ER 7 (378) (614)
Other expenses HEMAx (3,011) (3,011)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B A % 6 19,352 33,137
Income tax credit/(expense) FisHiEe, (FAx) 8 498 (4,357)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE &2 Bl#HE A {5 A HI S
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT Y A 19,850 28,780
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE & R ER R RAEL
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREF HK cents HK cents
THE PARENT 10 B JENL
Basic AR 8.03 11.66
Diluted ] 7.99 11.60
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRsRE 2 EWER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAEA

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (CRisEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 HA 8 35 Fl 19,850 28,780
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2 mE B A
Other comprehensive income that maybe A L& #5f - H b2 AU A AT 48
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EoEEEREK
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBRREE ZELEZH
foreign operations 56 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE B A TEA ABGAHEE2E
PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF LONE
THE PARENT 19,906 28,780
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B RGRS M BARRR

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
ANA=+H +ZA=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEZ) (EE=Z)
Notes HK$’000 HKSs000
Bt FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE L&A 11 2,986 3,183
Investment properties LA 12 68,666 70,091
Right-of-use assets ERREE 13(a) 4,233 8,486
Gooduwill B 14 134,485 134,485
Other intangible assets Hitv @\ & E 15 61,295 59,999
Financial assets at fair value through BATELERAKRZ
profit or loss — debt investment VB EE-—EBIRE 18 2,100 2,100
Deposits g 1,812 1,812
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 21 2,319 2,288
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 277,896 282,444
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 8 597
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R 16 51,136 50,159
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - ke REMmEK
receivables RIE 15,705 14,745
Contract assets EREE 17 20,038 20,226
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFE&ERZARYZ
profit or loss - listed equity investments ~ A& E— FHR AR E 18 7,352 10,121
Tax recoverable AR B IE 5,222 6,674
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITIFR 2,471 2,541
Financial assets at fair value through profit 1% A F{EKLIBZ AR Z
or loss — money market certificate and FHEE-EEmSHFE
debt investments REBRE 18 - 45,728
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEFRBEEE 249,316 200,730
Total current assets mENEEMAE 351,248 351,521
CURRENT LIABILITIES HEEE
Trade payables, other payables and FERE SRR - EfbER
accruals 1A N e R IR 19 63,746 65,023
Contract liabilities AREE 20 61,206 55,712
Lease liabilities HEAE 13(b) 5,014 5,886
Tax payable FESR TR IE 4,552 9,662
Total current liabilities mEAEAE 134,518 136,283
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 216,730 215,238
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERADEE
LIABILITIES 494,626 497,682
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RS AR ()

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
ANAB=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (E&E=Z)
Notes HK$’000 HKSs'000
i3 FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 13(b) 808 3,788
Deferred tax liabilities BETRIREE 21 11,805 12,515
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 12,613 16,303
Net assets BEFE 482,013 481,379
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of the BAREEARBGER
parent
Issued capital BEITRA 24,949 24,949
Share premium account % 17 % & BR 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share RIE A BR HIA% (5 SEE) 5T 2l
award scheme BE 2D (4,543) (5,462)
Other reserves E b 408,503 389,028
Proposed final dividend BORKRAR R B - 19,760
Total equity B 482,013 481,379
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SR TR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRREARL
Other reserves
AfpfE
Shares held
under the Share-
Share  restricted based Asset Exchange Proposed
Issued  premium shareaward  payment  Goodwill  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation  Retained final Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend equity
(i8]
BRs)
Riga
BEfT Ry FEEE  BBAR R BEER B EXRD RiERE
RE EER  BH i #® 1 A% R REEN LES 2
HKS 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKs000 HKs 000 HKs 000
TEr  FEr AT TR FEr FEr TEr BT TEn AT TEr
At 1 January 2019 (audited) RZZ-NF-A-B(EER) 24,949 53,104 (5809) 4246 (7221) 1972 746 (102) 377,506 29599 478064
Profitfor the period REEER - - - - - - - - 28,780 - 28,780
Total comprehensive income for the period AEH2ERAEE - - - - - - - - 2,780 - 28,780
Vesting of shares held under the restrcted share &5 515 ) B3 BB TR BB
award scheme - - 907 (907) - - - - - - _
Share award arrangements i REZH - - - 906 - - - - - . 906
Final 2018 dividend declared ER-F-NERHRSE - - - - - - - - (56) (2959 (29655
At30 June 2019 (unaudited) RIZ-RERAZTR(REEN) w99 5310 (4900) 4245 (7.227) 1972 746 (102 406230 - T80%

20 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2020



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

SEEy S

Attributable to owners of the parent

BR(E)

BRRREAER
Other reserves
Bt
Shares held
under the Share-
Share restricted based Exchange Proposed
Issued premium  share award payment Goodwill Reserve  fluctuation Retained final Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend equity
i3
AR
OS]
BRT Rt HERE  RERR L5 i EXR® RRRE
e HER 2kt R B ¢ B REEH RE  RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FEr FET
At January 2020 (audited) RZZ-FF-A-R(EER) 24,949 53,104 (5,462) 5,386 (7,227) 746 (3191) 393314 19,760 481,379
Profitfor the period REEER - - - - - - - 19,850 - 19,850
Other comprehensive incomeforthe period: ~ ZABEFEMZEMA :
Exchange differences on tranglation of foreign 28 SN EBEES 2 EH 28
operations - - - - - - 56 - - 56
Total comprehensive income for the period AEHEENAEE - - - - - - 56 19,850 - 19906
Purchase of shares held under the restrcted share &8 5 #1517 £B:t80E T
award scheme - - (235) - - - - - - (235)
Vesting of shares held under the restricted share B[R 5 (A 23 B TR H £ B
award scheme - - 1,154 (1,154) - - - - - -
Share award arrangements R gBZH - - - 752 - - - - - 752
Final 2019 dividend declared BR-EF-NERDRE - - - - - - - (299 (19760)  (19,789)
At 30 June 2020 (unaudited) RIB-RERA=TA(RERR) 29 53,104 (4,543) 4984 (7.227) 746 (313 413135 - 482,013
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ﬁﬁ EHII‘/T\/\IEEUILE%%

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHILLAEAR

2020 2019
—EZEF —ZE-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (CRisEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
g3 FETT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFIBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B %3¢ B g A 19,352 33,137
Adjustments for: AP EL
Finance costs s8R 7 378 614
Bank interest income RITH BUA 5 (2,022) (3,187)
Dividend income from listed BEAFELERARZ E
investments at fair value through mEER WA
profit or loss 5 (280) (320)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: ANEEEBER (W)
HEE
Financial assets at fair value through BEATELER AR
profit or loss LB EE 2,695 (1,410)
Investment properties "EME 1,425 (3,000)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -WELRSBZITE
equipment 6 691 718
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREECITE 6 2,771 3,530
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ~ JEURE 5 IRFUR(E,
trade receivables, net (BERE) F58 6 363 (48)
Reversal of impairment of contract BRE&HEERBETE
assets, net 6 - (68)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih A B 6 3,011 3,011
Equity-settled share-based payment Hx BEHEAROIHAE
expense 752 906
29,136 33,883
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 589 (2,261)
Increase in trade receivables Y E % BR FAE 0 (1,340) (14,100)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEHRIE - Re REME
deposits and other receivables Wz IE/)'X L/ (3 h0) (960) 5,595
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets ABHEERD () 188 (4,502)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables JE{+& 5 BR 7 « HAth B
and accruals 18 R FEET SRIE R (1,277) (5,599)
Increase in contract liabilities ERBEEM 5,494 3,220
Cash generated from operations KEEBEASRE 31,830 16,236
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEBEBNEH (3,578) -
Overseas taxes paid BRUBINEIE (322) (1,213)
Net cash flows from operating activities & EEAE 2R LRE
T 27,930 15,023
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
ERRSmESIRERER(E)

For the six months ended 30 June

BERNA=tTHLAEA

2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZX) (RegEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net cash flows from operating activities KERHFABcREREFE 27,930 15,023
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ~ R&EFE KB, (FTA) 2
ACTIVITIES RERE
Bank interest received B UERTT A 2,022 3,187
Dividends received from listed investments at & A FE&ABZF AR 2 b
fair value through profit or loss B R BUA 280 320
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BELRZEEER
equipment (494) (765)
Additions to other intangible assets RNEEMBETLEE (4,307) (6,323)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATFESEZARY
at fair value through profit or loss — debt B EEFGSHIE—EBRE
investment 2,535 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair HEIZAFELIEFZ AR Z
value through profit or loss — money market P EEMBHE-—EBME
certificate FE 43,267 -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EERPRITIF IR 70 155
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with W RN HBB=@A 2
original maturity of more than three months AR FOR
when acquired 53,560 688
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEESRE, (FA)Z
activities WEMEHTA 96,933 (2,738)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METBHAZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of shares under the restricted share 85 B B[R #Ii ) S2E 21T
award scheme gvil (235) -
Principal portion of lease payments HENTOEREEH D (2,368) (3,298)
Dividend paid ERARE (19,789) (29,655)
Interest paid ERFE (378) (614)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEZHAMACHEeREFE (22,770) (33,567)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BeRERRESEEZEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) FE 102,093 (21,282)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of HYzRERERREEE
period 147,170 254,857
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MEREE s LB FRE 53 )
CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTSATENDOF HiIRAHERERBEESEE
PERIOD 249,316 233,573
ANALYSIS OF BALANCEOF CASHANDCASH RERERBLEELBRIN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRGEHRERERITZ
condensed consolidated statement of cash RekFRBEeEE
flows 249,316 233,573
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B T

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the Government Electronic Trading
Services (“GETS"), cloud services and other related value added
services;

. provision of information technology (“IT”) solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (“BPO”") services; and
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020 has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS")
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”").

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read
in conjunction with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial information
are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019, except for the adoption of the following revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the first
time for the current period’s financial information.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Definition of Material

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided
to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the
effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting.
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark.
In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does not
have any interest rate hedge relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. The amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the GETS, cloud services and other
related value added services;

(b) the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services;
and provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services;
and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that unallocated interest income,
unallocated other income and gains, net, unallocated foreign
exchange differences, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Operating segments

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEHEER (E)
(CONTINUED)

(a) RBEDI

Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
A% BATRRERRH RE b
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

228 CE-NF ZBCBE CTNF ZRIRE CT-NF ZBIBE TR
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) ~(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) ~(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RE%ER) (REER) (REBR) (REE%)  (REBR) (REED)  (REER)  (REED)
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKs'000 HKS 00
FiEr AT FEn AT FEn FET FEr FET

Seqment revenue: FHBA
Salestoextermal customers  HEFHEEF
(note5) (Pi£5)

Otherincomeand gaing, net  EAINA R i 58

Total @t
Segment results PHEE
Reconcilltion: HE -

Unallocated interestincome & 7 &2 &| 84\

Unallocated other incomeand 7 7 B 4 A J§
gains, net et

Unallocated foreign exchange 77 el 1 = 54
differences, net

Corporate and other PEREMRAR
unallocated depreciation ~ #7&

Corporate and other PEREMRAR
unallocated expenses 53

Profit before tax REATR A

13,551 81,335 313 51,150 138 1363 117,408* 133,848
888 1,156 85 - 280 320 1,253" 1476"
74,445 82491 43,798 51,150 418 1683 118,661 135,324

21,958 28,207 10,581 13,677 (4,457) 5611 28,082 4749

2,022 3188'
2,387 o
(104) (246)
(24) (2623)

(12,794) (14677)

19352 33,137
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

4. REIBEHR (K)

(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #& 23 (E)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
JE R BATEREHES kg L

30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

i Sy 3 Sy 3 ZE0E ZE-NF

k- Jut 22 TZR ZBIEf ToR ZBIEf TZR ZB2%% 2R

AAZtRE  =t-B AAZtR  =t-8 AR=tE  =t-8 AR=tRE 1A

(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited) ~ (Unaudited) (Audited)

(RER) (gen) (RE8R) (429 (RE%K) (439 (RE3R) (429

HK$000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 00

FEr AT FiEn FHT FEn FET 7En AT

Segment assets PHEE 203316 23743 81,776 70,463 78813 128760 363905 412,966

Reconciliation: ik

Corporate and other TEREMRAREE

unallocated assets 265,239 220999

Total assets AELME 629144 63395

Segment liabilities TH8E 86,514 91,920 31,474 25727 47 47 118,035 117,694

Reconcilation: HE:

Corporate and other PERERAAREE

unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities aELE

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HKS117,408,000
(2019: HKS133,848,000) in the condensed consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains,

net, of HK$5,662,000 (2019: HKS4,664,000) in the condensed

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

—ToTHRHERE | MMAGEESRAT )0
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*  EREHEE Ba R AAE WA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4. REIBEHR (B)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #& I (FE)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
J& F R 5 BARRRERRH k% X
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEC8F CE-NE ZBIBE RN CECEE O CENF ZEIEE T4
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REER)  (REER) (REER)  (REER) (REER)
HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
7R T FEn AT FEn FET FEx FHT
Other segment information: E 417 5&# !
Net fair value gains/(losses) on % & A FENE/
investment properties (BB 58 - - - - (1,425) 3,000 (1,425) 3,000
Net fair value gains/(losses) on A FEFBENE
financial assets at fair value Zﬁﬁ % éé NEE
through profit or loss Wi/ ()38 - - - - (2,695) 1410 (2,695) 1410
Amortisation of other i Mﬁﬂ/ ﬁf%ﬁ
intangible assets 3,011 301 - - - - 3,011 301
Depreciation ik 1,167 1369 m 29 17 17 1,455 1625
Corporate and other TERAMAAE
unallocated depreciation 7% 2,007 263
3,462 4248
Impairment losses, net REREaERR
recognised/(reversed)inthe %7,/ (&) 2
condensed consolidated  HEEEFE?
statement of profit or loss* 306 (142) 57 26 - - 363 (116)
Capital expenditure™ ERRTH 316 27 4395 6,366 - - 41 6,643
Corporate and other PEREMRAE
unallocated capital EREE
expenditure 90 445
4,801 7,088
* Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed * BEREHEEER X TRER
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the XK B J& R 7% 7 75 R E R 7 5
application services segment of HK$699,000 (2019: HKS382,000) REK IR 5 582 7 6 5 18 5
and the solutions and integration services segment of 51 75 699,000 7T (= F — L F :

*%

HKS 125,000 (2019: HK$39,000), respectively and impairment
losses reversed in the condensed consolidated statement of
profit or loss attributable to the application services segment
of HK$393,000 (2019: HK$524,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HK$68,000 (2019: HKS13,000),
respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets.

382,000,% 7T) J 125,000/ 7T (=
FE—JL4F : 39000;5T) © ARRK
B B4 & 18 25 2 BT 73 (2] 2K B JEFH
ﬁﬁfkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%}?ﬁ EIY. i

5502 )% 18 £ 18 53 5 & 393,000
/7§7z (= ZF— N 4F : 524,000%
r) K 68,000 T (= F— L4 :
13,000/%T) °

w B EEYF  BERRE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHTBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) FKEHIPREFZHA
Hong Kong
and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
ERREMER HE FEI A ok
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEZEF _E-N4F CZBCBE —T-NF ZB-EF —TNE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REER) (REBR) (REER)
HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS000
FEn FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: DEHBA

Sales to external customers & THNREP 95,431 102,632 21,977 31216 117,408 133,848
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WAER AR T A

customers. HAo

(ii) Non-current assets (i) FEGEEE

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
ANA=+H +=-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (& EZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Hong Kong BE 142,968 146,486
Mainland China A A 128,697 129,758
271,665 276,244

The non-current asset information is based on the
locations of assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about a major customer

Revenues from an external customer individually amounting
to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2020, revenue from a major
customer of HK$29,548,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the solutions and integration services
segment.

For the period ended 30 June 2019, revenue from a major
customer of HK$33,658,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the solutions and integration services
segment.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

RETHEN (B])

(c)

—REIERFZEH

RE—BINREE Z WA ERIME
NEFBIKA10%3L A F -

HE-_ZE-_ZETFA=1+HIH
M kE—R2TERF WAL
29,548,000/ L' B &R IIR B
FE B IR 75 0 BB RN AR SR 5 22 M = A
MRS H -

HE-_Z—NAF<AZ+AHLH
M- RkE—REIEFEFZWAR
33,658,000/8 70 - ARSI K B
JE FB AR 75 > BB A0 R SR 5 2 R E K
BR 7% &6 o

WA - HAt AR W 5k F R
WADHTIT :

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHILLAEAR

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RagEz)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers HREEFAHNHWA 117,270 132,485
Revenue from other sources R EHARFRHAWRA
Gross rental income from investment EYE 2B WARTE R
properties and interest income from BB E 2R B A
treasury investments 138 1,363
117,408 133,848
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5.

—E-F

— =< —=

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

(i) BHFUAEH

Solutions and

B RSERR IR (42)
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -Hitlw AR W HEE (E)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEFAHHBA

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRARRK
FE A PR 7% SRR F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZ) (REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET FET
For the six months ended BE-_ZS-ZF
30 June 2020 ANA=THLEKREAR
Segments o
Types of goods or services Em iR E Bl
Sales of goods and provision of HEE m MR e
software, GETS and BPO services BREFESZRBER
EB RN RS 18,303 745 19,048
Provision of software implementation 12t 84 & j5 &
and related services, IT solutions MEERE - BaEHE
implementation and related RRTRERR
services 1B R AR 75 26,501 18,482 44,983
Maintenance services #EE AR TS 28,753 24,486 53,239
Total revenue from contracts with KEEFEAARBIA
customers 73,557 43,713 117,270
Geographical markets i & T 5
Hong Kong and others BB RAEAM 53,054 42,339 95,393
Mainland China B A 20,503 1,374 21,877
Total revenue from contracts with KERFALIMBAIA
customers 73,557 43,713 117,270
Timing of revenue recognition A ON TS
Goods and services transferredata M E—RFEEEE R &
pointin time AR5 18,303 745 19,048
Services transferred over time R — B N R AR 55,254 42,968 98,222
Total revenue from contracts with RERFELHHBIA
customers 73,557 43,713 117,270

FREWRE | R RRREER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

5. WA - HW AR W35 (&)

REFEFEHHKA (F)

(i) BHFUAEZH ()

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRIR T2 &
FEF AR 7 SR Bz
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REgEZ) CREER) RESE®R)
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
For the six months ended BE-F-NF
30June 2019 NA=THIEAREA
Segments o
Types of goods or services Em iR E Bl
Sales of goods and provision of HEEm&EMHEESM -
software, GETS and BPO services BREFESRBER
EBRIEIN IR TS 26,165 5,407 31,572
Provision of software implementation 12t 84 & j5 &
and related services, IT solutions MEEERE - BalEHE
implementation and related BRATRERR
services 1B R AR 75 26,465 21,232 47,697
Maintenance services HERTE 28,705 24,511 53,216
Total revenue from contracts with REBFELMBIRA
customers 81,335 51,150 132,485
Geographical markets i & 35
Hong Kong and others BB RAEAM 53,359 48,216 101,575
Mainland China AR A 27,976 2,934 30,910
Total revenue from contracts with KEREFELHRNBEIA
customers 81,335 51,150 132,485
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON TS
Goods and services transferredata N E—RFEEEES R &
point in time AR5 26,165 5,407 31,572
Services transferred over time R — R fE N R 7% 55,170 45,743 100,913
Total revenue from contracts with RKERFELHMBIRA
customers 81,335 51,150 132,485
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HbW AR Wz F5E (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFAHNHWEA ()
(ii) Performance obligations (i) BEHEF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO
services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from delivery, where payment in advance is normally required.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60
days from the date of billing.

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group’s entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment in advances are normally required
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts
are in general for period of one year and are billed based on
the time incurred.

oI | M RAEEERAT 35
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(iij) Performance obligations (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as

5. WA - HW AR W35 (&)

REFEFEHHKA (F)
(i) EXIEE (&)

RANA=ZTBEIEEHRTENE
ECREITHMO REIT) WX B

at 30 June are as follows: BRSENAT
2020 2019
—EBEIERF —ET-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (RisEz)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Amounts expected to be recognised as SRETEEIER B UA
revenue:
Within one year —FR 61,206 60,174

All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

FMIEENEERTENEETHR
HERSBEBARBR —FAER
AWE PR ENSRYTE
REREI A EAE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILAEA

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RiEEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Other income and gains, net HM WA R K= F5E

Bank interest income RITH B WA 2,022 3,187
Government subsidies B8UITT #7 B 2,387 -
Value-added tax refund received W B] S (B A AR A 330 659

Dividend income from listed investments at 2 A FELERAE 2
fair value through profit or loss EWERERSEKA 280 320
Others Hitb 643 498
5,662 4,664
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRB{ADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): ANEE BT AR &R GEA)
T 5% I8

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEA

included in “Cost of sales and services” on the face of the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**  Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HK$3,011,000
(2019: HK$3,011,000) is included in “Other expenses”on the face of the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software

products of HKS9,926,000 (2019: HKS9,534,000).

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$33,140,000 (2019: HK533,155,000)
classified under “Cost of services provided”above.

THEREERE | M RAEERRAF 3/

[
A

2020 2019
—EDEF —ZET-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (RegEZ)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BHEFEKAE 18,389 25,650
Cost of services provided B IR AR A A 33,140 33,155
Depreciation of property, plant and W BREREETE
equipment* 691 718
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 2,771 3,530
Amortisation of other intangible assets** HEf s EiE 3,011 3,011
Employee benefit expense™™: BERAFZ:
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - Fe kEM 68,199 68,693
Equity-settled share-based payment IR s E AR AT X
expense 752 906
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTEFET B
(defined contribution schemes) (EEHZETED 3,391 3,532
Less: Amount capitalised in other intangible  J& - R E b E L& EE AL
assets Z B H (4,062) (4,474)
68,280 68,657
Impairment of financial and contract assets, A7 & & 49& EREF5E ¢
net:
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEWE 5 BRFRE
trade receivables, net (B ERE) F58 363 (48)
Reversal of impairment of contract assets, BRE&HEERBETE
net - (68)
*  Depreciation for the period of HK$62,000 (2019: HK$61,000) is * BRI E 62,000 (ZF — L9 :

61,000)87C) WA BB & RmX . [
ERIRFEHAA

* Bk H i I & EE # £53,011,000% 7T
—EF— A 3,011,000 ) A B
Bitr B Ras o [EMFHZ A -

N HEEHEAEMESHEREE
K K 9,926,000& 0 (= F — L F -
9,534,000, ) °

# B LEE L BB R A 2
Z(5833,140,0008 0 (= F — L 4F -
33,155000/%7T) °



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense arising from discounted lease liabilities at an
amount of HK$378,000 (2019: HK$614,000) has been recognised
and classified under finance costs in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit and loss for the period ended 30 June 2020.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the period, except for a subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessment profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
are taxed at 16.5%. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

MEE M

AR EREE S 2 M B 378000
BIL(ZZE—NF 6140008 7T) E R
HE—_Z2-_ZFA=+HItHHEZ
ARG ABRRNERRD EAMK
BH -

Fri&®t

EBENERIBEAHMAREBE
A BETERTUE AT E165% (ZF
—NF 1 165%) EHBHE - EARERE—
B ENGI Y=Y R T o EiD
TS 5% I B 2 B /Y B 2£ 2,000,000 8 7T
—Z— 14 : 2,000,0008 7T ) &R %
T 1% 1% 8.25% =N B - 1M L 84 FE ER B 0 T
A% 16.5% A1 o Hfth b [& F& 2R 7 0 F)
ZRIERBE A LB E EEITER
RBEEREERREANE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHIEAEAR

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZX) (RegEZ)
HKS$’000 HKSs'000
FET FET
Current - Hong Kong BN ER— &%

Charge for the period B 551 2,268
Overprovision in prior periods BITARE LR EE (402) -

Current - Elsewhere BVER — H b ith (=
Charge for the period B 94 688
Deferred IRIE (741) 1,401
Total tax charge/(credit) for the period HABES L (ER) 858 (498) 4,357
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

9. DIVIDENDS

a. Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has
determined that an interim dividend of HK$0.05 (2019: an
interim dividend of HK$0.09) in cash per ordinary share should
be paid to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear in the Register of Members on Thursday, 3 September
2020.

b.  Dividend attributable to the previous financial year approved
during the interim period.

BIEERRME(E)

[ aS

a. RPHMHHEERR BEFGR

FER_ZE_ZFNA=ZH(EH
M) 23R A MM ARREBR
[% 3 LAIR & R 1 R BR A% B & 1% 0.05
BT (ZE— N F - HIRR 2.0.09
L) e

b. R HIHIR S 2 b (E R R F
BZRE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEA

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REgEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous & #t /4 & 74 /R HA HA R R 1~F
financial year, approved and paid during A& _E A KFE 2 K
the interim period of HK$0.08 (2019:final % B &% & i@ % 0.08 /5 7T
dividend of HK$0.12) per ordinary share (ZZE—NF  RERE
0.12/%7T) 19,959 29,939
Less: Dividend for shares held underthe & : R IE A A &) A R H
Company’s restricted share award Bt BB T 23 A
scheme Z AR PG AR 2 (170) (284)
19,789 29,655
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 10. BARIEERBRRELCEREA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 247,103,241 (2019: 246,818,981) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares of 247,103,241
(2019: 246,818,981) in issue during the period, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,257,799 (2019: 1,358,942) assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed vesting of
all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Bl

BEREABFSENBRESA R LR
A% B SR FE G AN BRRE A M AN B B 1T
T IR N AE 19 B 247,103241 B (=&
— L4 246,818,981 /%) 5T & - W 5t 5l
BRAARBRSIRMEEEE T AT
FRDIEH TR -

BERBERFCBEHBESQAALE
B A% SR pEAE A HARE AR E - st E ATH
2T A 19 80247,103,241 % (=
T — L4 : 246,818,981 [%) At E B
EXRBFAMBZ NS ETTRBEK
B UEBERABEREARRER
RERT BB 2 BB E T BA% 1,257,799
B (= Z — 5 11,358,942 %) #4184
BT BE NARDHEER
NBEIT 2 TR NEFHEGTE -

AEERERLE RN PRI T

=

BEREANRBEERN RS QA EAE
B BRI FIET & -

el

Number of shares
vl 4=

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=+tHLAEAR

2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REgsEz)
Shares iy
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5T & S A% E A Z F|Fr B EAA
in issue during the period used in the basic & 3517 & 3 A% I0AE F 15 1
earnings per share calculation 247,103,241 246,818,981
Effect of dilution — weighted average number #5852 — LB hIRE T8 -
of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIR AN BB R A 1) 22
Company’s restricted share award FTEIRH 2 ARSI G5
scheme 1,257,799 1,358,942
248,361,040 248,177,923
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

M. YE BERRKRE

2020 2019
—EBEIEHRF —ET-NF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeE%)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net carrying amount, at 1 January B—A—H  RmFEE 3,183 3,120
Additions NE 494 1,460
Depreciation provided during the period/year £,/ NI & E & (691) (1,388)
Exchange realignment ME W S - 9)
Net carrying amount, at 30 June/ WNA=+8
31 December TZA=+—8  KREZFE 2,986 3,183
12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REY X
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (feHEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FiET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEKHE 70,091 75,661
Disposals & - (9,196)
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments ~ AF{EFHE 2 U5,/
(B518) F8 (1,425) 3,626
Carrying amount, at 30 June/ RANB=+8/
31 December TZA=+—RHRZEKEAE 68,666 70,091
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

13. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its
operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
2 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

13. HE
AEEEBEEA
AEBBEREERPFHANSEYE
MEEAK - WEEE—RHNBEHAE=
E=F - —MmE  AEEWEIEA
EEEEZEN DT AREBUIGAL -
(a) FHAEEE

B/ FANEEERREENK

the movements during the period/year are as follows: HEREESHHT :
Properties
LY ES
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZET-NF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RETEZX) (FeEZ)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
As at 1 January mn—H—H 8,486 15,715
Additions NE - 1,225
Remeasurement B E (1,427) (1,510)
Depreciation charge e (2,771) (6,885)
Exchange realignment ME WS (55) (59)
As at 30 June/31 December RANA=+8/

+=—A=+—AH 4,233 8,486
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

13. LEASES (CONTINUED) 13. HE (&)

REBMEREAA (H)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

(c)

—E-F

— =< —=

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

B/ FAAEEHEERBNER

during the period/year are as follows: BREBHIOT
2020 2019
—EBEEHF —ET-NF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZKEE 9,674 15,715
New leases HE - 1,225
Remeasurement B E (1,427) (1,510)
Accretion of interest recognised during 8RN FER R BIE K
the period/year 378 1,102
Payments NEA (2,746) (6,799)
Exchange realignment PE X F8 % (57) (59)
Carrying amount at 30 June/ WRA=Z+8/
31 December TZA=T—BZKREAE 5,822 9,674
Analysed into: ST
Current portion mENER 5,014 5,886
Non-current portion EmBNAL D 808 3,788

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

() BREHEMMNESHE

™

RHY & FE L

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=+tHLAEAR

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEEZ) (CRisEZ)

HKS’000 HKS000

FET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEZFE 378 614
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ¥ A& E 2 T & 2,771 3,530
Expenses relating to short-term leases EHREHEEZHAY 36 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R IBEHER KA S 58 3,185 4,144
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

13. LEASES (CONTINUED) 13. HE (&)
The Group as a lessor AEBEREBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) consisting of REERBLEEHERH  BKERKE
two commercial properties in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) P (H3E12) B BREARFEA
and one industrial property in Hong Kong under operating lease RAME ((HREDOMEEADER
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants TREAN—EBELEYAYE -HEN
to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the Group R —RERKBEPLPINERIEZS - K
during the period was HK$98,000 (2019: HK$1,323,000). S E R B AR A 2 YA A 98,000 7
T (ZZ— N4 :1,323,00087T) °
The undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future REBBRBEEEP 2 T EUE
periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are B2 HE N AR R Y 2 RBEER
as follows: REHENRAT :
30June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-%F —FT-NF
ANA=tR +t=—A=1+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEZX) (Fe&E%)
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 214 35
After one year but within two years —FRERMFA 142 -
356 35
14. GOODWILL 14. &
(Unaudited)
(REEE®)
HKS’000
FET
30 June 2020 ZEZ2FAXAZ=TH
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2020 and m:i:gi— A—BR=FZFTF
30 June 2020 NA=ZtTHERAREERE 134,485
(Audited)
(&%)
HKSs'000
T8
31 December 2019 —E-NAF+=A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2019 and RZE—NF—-—A—BRZZE-NF
31 December 2019 TZA=+—BRAREEE 134,485
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

15. Rt B EE

Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
i3
HEEA* EFBER g4 @5t
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER)  (REER)  (REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
30 June 2020 “E-ZFXA=TH
Costat 1 January 2020, net of accumulated R =T -ZTF—A—H 2 A
amortisation and impairment Mk RETEERRE 26,468 7,322 26,209 59,999
Additions RNE 4,307 - - 4,307
Amortisation provided during the period K 214 25 7 5 - (827) (2,184) (3,011)
At 30 June 2020 RZZ-ZFRA=TH 30,775 6,495 24,025 61,295
At 30 June 2020; RZZZZFRA=TH:
Cost 2% 43,801 14,767 43,681 102,249
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  Z 5t 5 T Bl (E (13,026) (8,272) (19,656) (40,954)
Net carrying amount REFE 30,775 6,495 24,025 61,295
Deferred
development Customer
costs*  relationships Software Total
BT
REKA* FPHERE gt Fobe
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (£ &=1%) (B&ER%) (&%)
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2019 —E-NE+ZR=1-H
Costat 1January 2019, net of accumulated A =F—AF—F—BZHA
amortisation and impairment Mer REtEERAE 14,507 8,978 30,577 54,062
Additions NE 11,961 - - 11,961
Amortisation provided during the year REFEHEH - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=ZA=1+—8 26,468 7322 26,209 59,999
At31December 2019and 1 January 2020: HR=-FE—AF+-A=+—-HEK
RZZZZTF-H—H:
Cost D% 39,494 14,767 43,681 97,942
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 5t 5 R (E (13,026) (7,445) (17,472) (37,943)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,468 7322 26,209 59,999

* During the period/year, additions of other intangible assets of

HKS$4,307,000 (31 December 2019:
internally.

EERFEREERA

HKS11,961,000) were developed

7 45

B - A AR B E R E 4,307,000
BT (ZF—NWF+=ZA=+—H:
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16. B E 5 IR

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

AA=+H +TZH=1—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&&= =Z)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUE 5 IR 54,895 53,554
Impairment AE (3,759) (3,395)
51,136 50,159

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance

HEREKIBEB N RIREEZERS X

services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 90 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
90 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

HHEREREME @ AEEZRSHIER
E e @RI 4 4 sk R T HBE R = F 25
RILZHEME  AJeEBIEERINR - FEL
MRERE B EUARKRE T
RGZEFPME  BREEH KT
%90k - MfEME THEE BIARE
BfEEHAEREZHEBE0XR A5
FERRFERFEREEY - ALE—
HEEIERIEREEZEWRE SRR
BREEENTHEMBSTESR -
AREBIWEFR IS E TS THIER
mBREHEMEENRESTE -BEKE
SERFATEHE -

RBEHREEER - BIWE H BRI
HEAMWLMBRBZ RO -

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

= —FNF

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&&= =%)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —EAR 38,551 25,945
1 to 3 months —Z==1@A 5,234 15,065
4 to 6 months A EDS 4,329 7,976
7 to 12 months tE=+ =R 3,022 1,173
51,136 50,159
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

BIEERRME(E)

16. B E 5 IR ()

JEME B BER R BT

2020 2019

—E-%F —ENF

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (&%)

HKs’000 HKS000

FET FET

At beginning of period/year HER ) 3,395 3,532

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses,  JEi {8, (# [E1% B ) E5 18558

net 363 (108)
Exchange realignment ME W R 1 (29)
At end of period/year RE R 3,759 3,395

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

RERE B RRABEREETRE
O ARtEFRMEEEE - BEXT)
ENBRAHMEE - At BERR
IRERMEER EFHEERNR
SRHASNERBEEERE A
SRR KA BRI IR R B A 32 R Al 58
B —RME - BKESERFWAN
BE—F RBAXRRBHNITE
BB T UAMES

TREJIAKEFEREERESED
BRESEFRNEERRER

At 30 June 2020 R-ZZB-ZFXA=1H
Past due
B
Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over 3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
EERE -z =f@8A
PEW R IE e —@EAR =f@A BAE et
Expected credit lossrate A HZ EEE R 100% 0.18% 0.53% 0.53% 20.20% 6.85%
Gross carryingamount  FREIB{E
(HK$'000) (FAT) 3,238 38,628 3,505 7,578 1,946 54,895
Expected credit losses EHEERE
(HK$'000) (FAT) 3,238 70 18 40 393 3,759
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

16. EWE Z R (&)
RZZE—-hhEFE+=ZA=+—H

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2019

Past due
#
Credit-
impaired Less than Tto3 Over3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
EERE - =fEA
JE U AR 3R E —EAR =fdA A st
Expected credit loss rate ~ TEHZ EEE R 100% 0.10% 0.30% 0.30% 11.44% 6.34%
Gross carryingamount  FREIB(E
(HK$'000) (F&1) 3,224 27,597 10,196 11,846 691 53,554
Expected credit losses EHEERE
(HK$'000) (FAT) 3,224 27 30 35 79 3,395
17. CONTRACT ASSETS 17. BRNEE
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—ECRH —E-NF
ANA=+H +Z-A=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (& EZ)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Contract assets arising from: BREERBUATSIA
Sales of goods and provision of software, HES mREHEY -
GETS and BPO services BNETEZRBERER
ARSI PR 75 1,716 3,130
Provision of software implementation RS E M MR RTS -
and related services, IT solutions BABEBRAARER R
implementation and related services B R 17,839 16,645
Maintenance services HERTE 483 451
20,038 20,226

Contract assets are mainly recognised for revenue earned from
the provision of software implementation and related services, IT
solutions implementation and related services as the receipt of
consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease in contract assets
as at 30 June 2020 was the result of the decrease in the sales of
goods, provision of software and related services at the end of the
period.

HRRENRRETEENFHHERE
R - REHEGEERBBERE &
AR R EOR T RE M LA R G
WANTHERBRANEE - EHE
HEEMAEERY EAMBERT
REENMABRBTAAGNEETIR
MERERATE TRAENEPEA
MHRER RECHERRENEE
MERBEHIBERBEZHRR -
RIZE_ZFRNA=THNEHNEE
BT R REES @ REHEMF
N 8 AR A5 R D PR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. ERNEE (&)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is EHEAEMNTERKE S EERENAT
as follows:
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
ANA=t+tH tZA=t—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&%)
HKs’000 HK$"000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 20,038 20,226
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract AMBEZRAEGERESHOT :

assets are as follows:

2020 2019

—BCEF —E-NF

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (feEZ)

HKS’000 HKS000

FET FET

At beginning of period/year HERF ) - 68
Reversal of impairment losses, net B EREBEFE - (68)

At end of period/year RER R - -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. EAFPERBER ARZHMKE
PROFIT ORLOSS B
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
— —FT-NF
ANA=+tH +tZA=t—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEK) (&%)
HKs’000 HKs'000
FET TET
Debt investments, at fair value BATFERFEZEHKRE 2,100 4,633
Listed equity investments, at fair value BATEFE ETRARE 7,352 10,121
Money market certificate, at fair value BATEFE EEmISEFE - 43,195
9,452 57,949
Portion classified as current assets DER/RBDEERD (7,352) (55,849)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERBDEERD 2,100 2,100
The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at TR EEBEIEEE MES B
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading. BIRATEEERAEMEREE -
The debt investments and money market certificate were BEERENEEMBEERAESHOR
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit EREWIEAS LA EME —Z M
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of R s EAE A TFTEKREBEZAEZ
principal and interest. BT & B o
As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s listed equity investments with a R-E-_FEFXA=+H xEH2
carrying value of approximately HK$7,352,000 (31 December 2019: TR EREEEL A7,352,0008
debt and listed equity investments of HK$12,654,000) were pledged T(ZE—NhEFE+-_A=+—8: &%
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. N F i R% A% & 12,654,000 7T) B &

SR TAEE 2 —RIBITRE (FER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

19. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

19. ENE SR - HMENRE

ACCRUALS RSt RIA
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
AA=+H +TZH=1—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (& #E=Z)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Trade payables FERTE 5 RRR 13,509 15,561
Other payables H b e IR 34,898 29,355
Accruals FEET R IE 15,339 20,107
63,746 65,023

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEHHEEER ENEZERNIR
BEHZKREOTTMT

30 June 31 December

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&%)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —fEAA 8,682 11,411
1 to 3 months —E={EA 3,183 3,070
4 to 6 months A EYS 1,056 385
Over 6 months NMEA L E 588 695
13,509 15,561

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30-day terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. N EE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHEEFBOT
30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-ERF —ET-NEF
AA=+H +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (& &E=Z)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Short-term advances received from customers = 4 5 52 BIE L
Sales of goods and provision of software, HE T m RIE e
GETS and BPO services BRETFE FRE RES
ARSI F BR %5 1,864 2,801
Provision of software implementation and REEHER LR
related services, IT solutions BB RAT RE B R
implementation and related services B RS 17,015 18,430
Maintenance services HE RS 42,327 34,481
Total contract liabilities aHBaELE 61,206 55,712
Contract liabilities mainly include short-term advances received to EHEBETEREMRERGE R X
render software implementation and related services, IT solutions HEARGE BEAREBREAIEERK
implementation and related services, and maintenance services. HE B AR 75 LA N2 4 vE AR 75 P Uk BN A9 52 HB
The increase in contract liabilities as at 30 June 2020 was mainly due BR-RZEBE_TEFAA=ZTHHAE
to the increase in short-term advances received from customers in HNBEBEENEZTEARNEIRLEERE
relation to the maintenance services at the end of the period. ZEWE PR BB TIE AT -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

21. DEFERRED TAX 21, EEHIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the B/ RN BEERBEERAGEZE
period/year are as follows: EF N
Deferred tax assets EEMBEE
Losses
available for
offsetting Temporary
against differences of
future taxable contract
profits liabilities Total
AJ it
3K 85 R R PERR EHNEEZ
BaERmEE HEERE #et
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REEZR) (REERZ)
HK$’000 HKs’000 HKs’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R_E_TF—H—H 1,434 2,288 3,722
Deferred tax credited to the BAFT AP EER
condensed consolidated TR ZBEEFRIR
statement of profit or loss
during the period 794 31 825
Gross deferred tax assets at RZZEBE_ZTFA=1+
30 June 2020 RIEERIBEEEER 2,228 2,319 4,547
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREERE
Fair value
adjustments

Deferred arising from

Revaluation of development acquisition of
properties costs  subsidiaries
Wi

BEEX WERRZ

MEER BERE ATEREZ
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)
HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Withholding
taxes Total
BN @it

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RBE®R) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000

T FET FEx -2 -2
At 1January 2020 RZ2-ZF-A—H 826 4,367 8,148 608 13,949
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the BRIk GEA) BRERA RS
condensed consolidated statement of T ERHA
profit or loss during the period (57) m (715) 145 84
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 2020 R -E-TFEXA=+HEL
HERBER 769 5,078 7,433 753 14,033
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

21. JRAERL IR (%)

Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting Temporary
against differences of
future taxable contract
profits liabilities Total
AJ
HIH AR R PERR BRAEEZ
Tt s F ) &5 18 ERER 5t
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (e Ew=%) (&%)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAETT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-hhF—HA—H - 2,713 2,713
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to £ Azt A (F0k) 424
the consolidated statement of Bk ZBELERIE
profit or loss during the year 1,434 (330) 1,104
Exchange realignment M S - (95) (95)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 RZE—NF+H
December 2019 =+ —RHIRERIE
BEER 1,434 2,288 3,722
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluationof ~ development  acquisitionof ~ Withholding
properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
W
Bt WERREZ
NEEMH  FAEKER  ATERE il @5t
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(B=k) (B8R  (BER) (&&7) (&&7)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-1%-A-A 1578 - 9,578 1574 12730
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FERR/ GIA)RABRERZ
consolidated statement of EERE
profit or loss during the year 266 4367 (1,430) 411 3614
Exchange realignment i 5 - - - 2 @
Tax paid ERHE (1,018) - - (1375) (2393)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZB-NETZA=1—8
31 December 2019 BREREREER 826 4367 8,148 608 13,949
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

22

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the condensed consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

BIEERRME(E)

21. JRAERIR (%)

HEZJBN ETEERBREER
BECREREAM BN R AL -
AT RASERENHEHRE N ZE

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: IERIIREE R DT -
30June 31 December
2020 2019
—EERF —ET-NF
ARA=t+H +TZH=1—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (& =Z)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERERE PR ARER
condensed consolidated statement of REBIEEE TR
financial position 2,319 2,288
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised inthe R ESBA4R A BI AR R HER
condensed consolidated statement of RETIEBEFRE
financial position (11,805) (12,515)
Net deferred tax liabilities R IE B E)F 58 (9,486) (10,227)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2019: HK$31,700,000), of which
HK$21,003,000 (31 December 2019: HK$21,237,000) were utilised at
the end of the reporting period.
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22. RAREE

RNBEHREEER  XARRPBERE
AEL BB ZXRAENT

RAFCHAREBAEZE 2 ETALOM
MEMBITRHZBHRE ERA
=T R1TIR M4 A 231,700,000 7T (—
Z—NAF+=HA=+—H8 : 31,700,000
BT 2 FEAR - H 21,003,000 7T (=
- NF+=ZA=+—8 :21,237,000
BL)ERBREPHELEELRHA -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

24

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

23. BEAERS

BRIt S B RREMESNFRZ RS -
RHRERIN REERHRN G ETT
TOREALRS :

AEBTEEEABZMEWT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEA

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZET-NF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REFEZX) (RegEZ)

HK$’000 HKS000

FET FHET

Short term employee benefits REEERA 7,876 9,626

Equity-settled share-based payment expense [I% 18 4% & LA 15 4 F 2 478 489

Post-employment benefits BEEL 1218 A 81 72
Total compensation paid to key management X T EEIE A8~

personnel B 5 4818 8,435 10,187

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables, other payables and financial
liabilities included in accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investments and money market certificate are based on available
market prices.

24. BT AXFERAFESER

R

RBEHHEER AEBEMBEE
kaEzREERE A HESEIMEE -

EEECEHEREAFABEEE
EERRTER  BREZRNX  Re
R ELA FE MR ~ PR & S BRR - EAd
BNRAM AR FRBAZH B EE
ZAFERAEKREERSE ET2HR
ZETAZREAERE -

MBEERABZAFEDRABRR
HHZAREMZARSTATEA
fR ERGBISBEREESERN® - T
FIITERREE BN LT AFE -

ETARARBEBREZAFENRT
BREFL -

AAEBREZEMEEESFLER
MSFEZ A FEDRTSEREH -
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24. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

24, IR TEAFERATFEEZER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2020

&E (&)

DFESHER

TREBTRIASEMBITAZ R VER

SR

BATEHEZEE

R-FE-—FEFNA=+H

Fair value measurement using

APEFERAUTRE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BB EATEE EATTEE

TIEHRE WARE BAHE
(%118) (%28) ($38) Bt
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (RERER) (RBER) (REER)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value through ~ R AFEZLBHEARZ
profit or loss: PHEE -

Listed equity investments TARERE 7,352 - - 7,352
Debt investment BREE - 2,100 - 2,100
7,352 2,100 - 9,452
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

24. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

24.

MBEIEAFERAFESER
B (&)

AR ESHRERE (E)
BAFEHEZEE: (8)
RZF—NF+=—H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AVEHERAUTEE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EATEE EXTAUHE
TiEME BABE BAHE
(B1E) (%28) (£3E) B
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (£ E=%) (EERZ) (&%)
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Financial assets at fair value through ~ R AFEZLBHEARZ
profit or loss: PHEE -
Listed equity investments TARERE 10,121 - - 10,121
Debt investments EBEE 2,533 2,100 - 4,633
Money market certificate EBMBTE - 43,195 - 43,195
12,654 45295 - 57,949
Liabilities measured at fair value: BEAFEFEZAE:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair

value as at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019.

During the period ended 30 June 2020, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

AEBR-ZE_EFAA=Z+THEZ
E-NAF+-A=+—BAEEEMIEK
NFEFABZHBEE -

BE_ZT_TFANA=TRHILHHE"
WY BEELMBAGBMNS - £1ER
F2EZHBERATEFEEE  TE
AV EFEBEAXBLEIE (HEZ
T-NFHA=+—HIEFE: &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and other
payables, financial liabilities included in accruals and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates

relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits
with floating interest rates.
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BIEERRME(E)

25. KEREEEEREEK

AEBZIEMBHTABBRDEMER
TEFAERENEFRARACEE - F
MBETAZTZREIRAEEZE
BRE AKEEEMSBYBEER
BE WEEESER R MEMBE
WOkE ~ e B SRR R LA R RRR
AFARFRBZH K EBEREAFE
RBSANRZMBEE MEFMBEE
ENBBETEARBEEARES -

AEERBEIARELEZ T ZRBRAR
TRk SNERR - EERR - BAE
RERLERBDECRER EFSEH
I R &N SRRt E IR % TR Ut 5 L R
ZHR e

M@
AEBREMSNEZEGHMAT 2

Rt BENEEFRNBITRRBZH
MEFBZRE MRITHERBEM -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 25.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

MHEREREBERBE (&)

AR Eb ()

TRBFEF B LB BT
BRT - A E 2 B BATRF (B8 F
BAEBITREBRRTERAELE)
WRR QBT RSB 2 QI -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

HEiEhn, RRBE A& T
OGR4 i, GBd)
(Unaudited)

(REEZ)
HKS$’000
FET
As at 30 June 2020 R=-B-ZFXRA=TH
Hong Kong dollar ETT (25) (92)
United States dollar EIv (25) (395)
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARB(TARED (25) (116)
Hong Kong dollar ame 25 92
United States dollar ETT 25 395
RMB AR 25 116
As at 30 June 2019 RZE—NFARA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar AT (25) (109)
United States dollar ETT (25) (351)
RMB AR (25) (181)
Hong Kong dollar me 25 109
United States dollar eV 25 351
RMB AR 25 181

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

BRORBIEAIN  HAEEZEa BT
MRe-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

BIEERRME(E)

25. I EREREBFERBEEK (&)

S ELBR

AEEEHXZEEER - WERE

ERENEEFENERZELYEE
BIANEERBRZAR REEZ
AR KBS

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TREIEMBEEMERERIE 2
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB BAT AEERHRESHBELEER 2
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's RN (AEBEERABEATE
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets BE)HARKIERTRESEZH 2K

and liabilities). RRIZE o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ExLH R B A % Al
(FEg) & CEL)
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
% HKs’000
FET
As at 30 June 2020 R-ZB-BFXA=TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB T A AREEZE 5 (523)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T i A REEFHE (5) 523
As at 30 June 2019 R-ZZ—NAFRA=TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HARKEEE 5 (457)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T 3, A REEFHE (5) 457
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRARBE AN  WARE B E S EE
profits. A2 o
Credit risk EER®
The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised NREFTEHR L EERITFZE=
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most FIREBEKTETRSS - IR AEER
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain THE O OKEDBIREEKIETR

extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on
an ongoing basis.

SrEE EXREFVAGBET
EEBRILF o WO - IRER 2R
FAEEERERELE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and period/year-end
staging classification as at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

25. I EREREBEFERBEEK (&)

FERR (&)
REELRRRAFERITERER

TREFERAEEEERENEE
BzkaaEERR  E2NEEER
BREE(RIFEATETHEEBLHALSE
NHERTREEMER)  RRZF
—EFERA=AHERZE-NAF+=
A=+—A8H FRmEREIE-
FrEFMeBAUFEENRME®E -

As at 30 June 2020 R-BZEFAF=1H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f8A
RHEEESR PHRBEERSR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-RR EoRA EZRE L A% #zt
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (RBER) (RBER) (RBER) (REBER)
HKS$'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* e E 5 BR3 - - - 54,895 54,895
Contract assets* AREE: - - - 20,038 20,038
Deposits and other receivables 24 & £ f JE U 5008
- Normal** —IEEw 4,675 - - - 4,675
Financial assets at fairvalue A FEKLEHRAE
through profit or loss LHBEE 9,452 - - - 9,452
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER
- Not yet past due — MR8 2471 - - - 2,471
Cashand cashequivalents  BRERERRBRLEE
- Not yet past due — MR8 249,316 - - - 249,316
265,914 - - 74,933 340,847
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

25. I EREREBFERBEEK (&)

FERR (&)

REERRRAFRIEREER ()

As at 31 December 2019 R-E—NEFEF+—-H=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
EHEESS 2HEHEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-RBE E-RER E-RER B B
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(l8%&Z) (lmE&7) (BE%) (lm&E%) (&%)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000
FHET FHET TET FET FET
Trade receivables* B E 5 R 3 - - - 53,554 53,554
Contract assets* BHEE" - - - 20,226 20,226
Deposits and other receivables 14 [ E it f& U 2008
- Normal** —IEE* 4312 - - - 4,312
Financial assets at fairvalue R A FEKLERAE
through profit or loss LUBEE 57,949 - - - 57,949
Pledged bank deposits EERRRITER
- Not yet past due — WA 2,541 - - - 2,541
Cashand cashequivalents ~ BRERERRBRLEE
- Not yet past due — WA 200,730 - - - 200,730
265,532 - - 73,780 339,312
* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies ¥ A EEEREE L E R E R E

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 16 and 17 to the financial

statements, respectively.

*%

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful””
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[
A

The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered #*
to be “normal”when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

WEZEREAREVEE  ERBEHE
B E)E R DI ERYEHEN T 16
L7 e

fif ¥ 52 R EL il & 40 50 TR 2K 80 B K I A
BEHXRTUBEEEAV S ERLIER
2 K B0 R (F 2 KA fE
WA B EEEEZIER] - A
R HEEEMEREERRE]



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
in Hong Kong (note 18) as at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019.
The Group's listed equity investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%

25. I EREREBEFERBEEK (&)

R A fE A% B

Hx${EWHMxE?aEE§AH§§5 & 20 (&
MEBFBEZEBCERRAER 2D
FEREZRAR KAEBEZBRAER
J_U&A/J?EAE_z_QE/\H THAR
—NE+-A=t—HEAER
¥1Ei<«$§ EARZMBEE-F R L
MR E (M52 18) Z AR AR E -
AEBZ ETBRARERBBBR AR
SHBERAFR LT REEHAEEE
BiZmi5wENE

e A

change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments, EATRREFEMBEZER - AE

with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, FEREAERE AEBLMRAKRE

based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. R EHREEER 2 A FESZEE)10%

- AHEIER 2 §URIRE -
Carrying

amount Change

of equity in profit

investments before tax

BAEREZ RRBE Al

IREE i B

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBEEZ) (REBEZ)

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
As at 30 June 2020 R-ZB-ZBFXA=TH
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEAE LT ZBRARE :

— financial assets at fair value through —EBAFELEEARZ
profit or loss B EE 7,352 735
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BIEERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEBEEREERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk (continued) R A& 1% JEL B (48)
Carrying
amount Change
of equity in profit
investments before tax
RARE 2 B 50 B
REAE Vi )
(Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (&%)
HKS'000 HKS000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2019 R-E—-hE+=-A=+—H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EREBLEMZRAKRE
— financial assets at fair value through —EBAFELEEARZ
profit or loss WBEE 10,121 1,012
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRIREBRHFIN B AREFHERBES
profits. (O 2=
Liquidity risk REBESER
The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to NEEBZEEZAEREZEHNESIA
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short ENHEEHLEEHZVBEEaES O
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group R BERERPECRBE  AEBER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and Li#gFEBEERATHRERAERE
bank deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the BE RS MIBTTEGRIRITER
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash WRERRERE R ERKR 2L -
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior SREEBIEFERYERANER 2]
management on an ongoing basis. ERE °
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B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 25. I BEBEEREERKE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) nEELER (F)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end REEHELEER AEERESD
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted RTIRA R E o M B A EE BB
payments, is as follows: AR
As at 30 June 2020 R-Z-BHFXA=T1H
Lessthan  3tolessthan 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=z
REXEE  OR=EAR  TZEAR -Z1f @

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (RBER) (REBER) (REER) (RBER)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx Tz
Trade payables JERTE S RN 11,681 522 1,306 - 13,509
Other payables Hit 508 - 34,898 - - 34,808
Lease liabilities HEAR - 522 4,591 1,082 6,155
Financial iabilities included in accruals - 5 A JET5E 2 S B B & - 5,871 - - 5,871
Guarantees given to banks for RAEEAEZE AT
performance bonds/quarantees AUOBHENRE
issued in relation to certain FEORMARITRE
contracts undertaken by the Group 2 &R 21,003 - - - 21,003
32,684 41,813 5,897 1,042 81,436
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H
Less than 3to less than Tt05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
-z
REXEE  OR=fAA TZEAR —Z21f Bz
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(8 %5%) (&%) (&5%) (&%) (&% %)
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKs 000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Trade payables FER 2 5 BRE 13713 1153 695 - 15,561
Other payables Hio M FIE - 29355 - - 29,355
Lease liabilities HEAR - 1,108 5,355 3947 10410
Financial liabilities included in accruals - & A JE5T B 2 B 75 & & - 5533 - - 5,533
Guarantees given to banks for REEEAEZE AT
performance bonds/guarantees BHRERORE
issued in relation to certain FEiRMARITRE
contractsundertaken by the Group 2 1E{R 21,37 - - - 21,37
34,950 37,149 6,050 3,947 82,096
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25.

26.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2020 and year ended 31 December 2019.

1

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 13 August 2020.

—T_THRHEBE | RBMAGEEEARAT 6/
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Other Information

Hiw&Ex

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2020, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to

EERNROREERG 2 EERKXR

RZEZZTFNA=Z1TH  FSEFRARQ
REREEER (FERE %&Hﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬂ(f
XV EB) 2 B 7 K 48 B8 B 1

> MEIEERD]) 8

aik RN

AREE S M E &5 5 352

GREFEZECMPAREARE LT

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for #{TABEEEITELA X HWIZETE] BT
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows: MEARAIRBERG 2 BERIT :
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: AAREBBERZHR
Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
FEROME  SoRERME

Percentage
of the
Directly Through Company'’s
beneficially controlled issued
Note owned corporation Total share capital
EARRDT
HE ZB BEB®ITRA
Name of director EEng BtiF BEnEEE SEHEAH wmy Aok
Ng Cheung Shing SRR @) 4,684,000 114,614,000 119,298,000 47.82
Cheung Wai Lam SRAIE TR 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.40
Leung King San, Sunny £ 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 0.41
Ng Kwok Keung R E 58 520,000 - 520,000 0.21
7,234,000 114,614,000 121,848,000 48.84
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

%ﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁZ%ﬁ‘é&iﬁé%
IIE

R—BHEBEERD 2H A :

Percentage
Number of shares of the
KB #E associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled  issued share
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation capital
LEREL S
EE EB EBTRA
EEpng B EEER BEANEZHR R 17 % 5Bl Biffs XEEHLT Rl
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And  Company’s subsidiary Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
RRE Technologies ~ A2 ZHIBAF deferred (note PF7E (b)) TEFE
International EREREL
Limited

Mg RRERAT

Notes:

(@) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

—ToTHRHERE | MMAGEESRAT 60

GEE

(@) CS.(BVI) Limited 2 2= & KB AR BHEEE
BRAF ([BH])#HE 114,614,000 % i% 15 - =
RBEABRENCS. (BVI) Limited Z JRE A S
EAESIESTE= S 2 — A L2 IR
ifl C.S. (BVI) Limited Rl 5 A B IR R A S E
TESRERTE=ZD 2 — A LI -
bt BIBEBEHFRBEKRN  RRBILAEES
BRBHEE ZERn P A ER -

(b) 3,250,000 & B EREIRIEA D R B W EA ©

BREXEREN RZT=_TF A=1+AH"
MEEENARA S EEAEREERZ K
AR R B - EERER Z M E R
FI2FAB TR HRBEBLTETAES
ETRFXZNEETRIRTHAE AR A
KB Pz s SRR



Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded
Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded
Shares will then be transferred to these employees and directors upon
vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award
Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as
notified to them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other incentive or
share option schemes and under the Award Scheme must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2019.

EEREROIES 2ER

BTN [RERiE &1 N [ A R BB i 22 B &t
S MEWEEN  RAREA TR -
BMERTEINEFAREISEZRBAR
P F A FERB AR R B B 5 &
S EN BT AZSENDEREFT
{8 A e e B AR P8 2~ BB RT3 ()
ZH EEFEBAEMEMEARRZ
EAm=E -

IR 8

AARBTZBRESNEIEAREME
BRNIEHERZ A BE2HEEIRHER
REIHTR -

BERNATBRENHARE 176 &E#H
KRR

BRH RO RBEE

KRR ZZEZENFRA-_+T_BEHE
PRSI RR 1D BB AT &) ([HEE AT &81)) MR =T
—tFERAZ+—R(EEBH) TEEZ
HEIETE - IRIFEENFTE] - AR RN ([88
BRn) EEEBPREETAEAFERFTA
EHEAERER (BREESR) - KAQFINH
METXTARABARAZERENRES
ZHEUAEARA B ERERO RAHESE
MEe BEROHERBERNEENEREZ
LEHEHRERES - ZERFEHEAAEBT
BREZRDBEE  TEZRAABTEE %
TRk ETTNERECEELMT
5 b (BT HR R AR R AT (] E 4 52 B ok B8 AR 4 =1
BRI ERHERTENERR
EETEEATETZRMNDEE 2 BER
BESHBEA D TN D37 2 30%) °

ERRBASNHEBERN T NFFH-
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Other Information (continued)

Hitp &R (&)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) AR R0 R BT & (&)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the FNERHFINEE T -TF XA =+ H - HH
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30 N:% ZEEhH2ITE [ 2EENIL(D ~ A R E & -
June 2020.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

AEBRBROHE Weighted
At Vested At average
Name of category 1January during 30 June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2020 the period 2020 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SHENE R-B-EF R=-B-EF BRmE
P I8 %8 51 —B—B HRERE H~A=+tH RBEEXBAH RBROEREY YHAVE
HKS
BT
Directors
=
Ng Cheung Shing 200,000 (50,000) 150,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
KRB —T-N\F 30 April 2023
hA+MAE  ZE-AFNA=THZE
—EZ=FmA=+H
Cheung Wai Lam 100,000 - 100,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
RER ZT-REF 30 September 2021
TA+TMAE —E—+FAA=THZE
—E--%AHA=+H
Cheung Wai Lam 200,000 (50,000) 150,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
KRR —E-N\F 30 April 2023
hA+MAE ZE-AFPA=THZE
—EZ=FMA=+H
Ng Kwok Keung 24,000 (24,000) - 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 to 2.62
RE% —E-A1F 30 April 2020
FAWA “E-RFENA=THZE
—ECRENA=+H
Ng Kwok Keung 200,000 (50,000) 150,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RE% —E-N\F 30 April 2023
EATEAE  ZE-AFEA=1tHZE
ZEZ=FPMA=+H
Sub-total
ey 724,000 (174,000) 550,000

—EoTHERHERE | RBRAEEEGRAR /]



Other Information (continued)

Hitp &R (&)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

ABEBRBROZE

BRI EB S (F)

Weighted
At Vested At average
Name of category 1 January during 30 June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2020 the period 2020 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SRENE R-B-EfF R-B-FF =19L
P % R —A—H HREHEE KAE=tH RURBAH RBROERYE ¥HLVE
HKS
BT
Other employees
Hinfg g
In aggregate 24,000 (24,000) - 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 2,62
&&t —HF to 30 April 2020
HAWA “E-XFENA=THZE
—ETFEMNA=1H
In aggregate 48,000 - 48,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
&&f ZE-RF 30 September 2021
+tH+HmA —tFNA=TRE
—“E--F¥AA=1H
In aggregate 1,060,000 (265,000) 795,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
&&f —N\F 30 April 2023
AA+EA T-NFMA=TRZE
—E-=FMA=+H
In aggregate 420,000 (84,000) 336,000 4 July 2019 30 June 2020 to 3.
A& —hEF 30 June 2024
+AMA “E-TFAA=THZE
—E_MEARA=1H
Sub-total
ey 1,552,000 (373,000) 1,179,000
Total
BEt 2,276,000 (547,000) 1,729,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 30 June 2020, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

FERRREMAL (AFAQTE
EREFBRTHRAR) RROEKEBER

0z &

RZEZTFNA=Z+H LA TNAKQFA
OB EIRIEFE 5 M HA G501 55 336 (&R 7E
FEZEZELMAERRFBEETRA

N EBIRHE 5% LA b2 #ES

Long positions: #E:
Percentage
of the
Number of Company’s Number
Capacity and nature ordinary issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes  of interest shares held capital options held
RN
BERTRA i
ARNRRREE/ AR Mt BoRERME FiEEBEREE BOl BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@  Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BUMRARAR BEREREAR
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@  Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 45.94 -
BRXEHRE
Puttney Investments Limited ("PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 -
BEREREAR
Hutchison International Limited (“HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
BRXEHRE
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEEERAA ((HE]) BRXEH AT
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIE% (RE)ARRA(RE] BRXEH AT
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINZEXRBRAR (KA BRREH AT
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 1073 -
PN BEREREAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,564,665 2.23 -
BEREREAR
() Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 3.77 -
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b)  PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”

above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 110,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the period was approximately HK$235,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.

TERRRAEMAL (EFAQRE
EFREFBRTHRAR) RROKEBER
oz ()

: (&)
P &E -

@ EIERIARREE BB RARRG
CRHEBAR]—BNRBEARERELEY
s -

(b) PILJIHILZ ZEMEBAR HLRIATE 2
2EMBRAR - REARNZ2EHBAR] -
MEEZWEB AR BRAMEZRIKRE
BETESIENITFEBBR=S 2 — R EE -
RBRBLELHEEN B R -MEk
HIL % 18 1E B2 PIL FT 3% 29,148,938 i% 7N A &) i%
DA -

() 9,397,335 1% I% 19 M Preferable Situation Assets
Limited ([ PSALJ) ¥/ ° PSAL B Webb David
Michael c S EHEZHHB = S xm - ALt -
Webb David Michael 5t 4 4% 18 {E 7 PSAL 5
2 PR E R o

BREXEEEN RZTE_TF A=1+H"
PrEREHN EX[EFENRD RAEERD
ZRBMRR] —HZANRARESI  HE
ERMALTRARB RO HABBERDTHEE
RIBE 75 LIS GRHI5E 336 A T ik 2 &

HEAR -
BE BEHHEXRAQXALHES

A - AR E ZBR IR G EZEET A FEA
EREZAEHAARELEZENGR  Bm
588 B AR a4 110,000 8% B ) F {E 42 B
ZRHEIED c HRREEZSERGE X
4858 4 5 235,000 78 T °

B EXWBEEIN - NRF REAAHEA A
REBABEEE  BOsiHEARREM L

RN

M8 75 °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during
the reporting period except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. As disclosed in the announcement
dated 30 December 2019, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been re-designated
from an executive director of the Company and the CEO of the Group to
an executive director effective 1 January 2020.

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William has been appointed as the deputy CEO of the
Group with effect from 1 August 2018. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on
certain business operations and administrative functions of the Group,
assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure
they are implemented successfully. With the present board structure
and scope of business, the Board considers that there is no imminent
need to appoint a CEO. However, the Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure and will
consider whether any changes, including the appointment of a CEO, are
necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2020.

—ToTERBRE | RBRREEEGRAR /5
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and other regulations. This framework was built around a
structure that enables the Board and the management to discharge their
risk management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation
as well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining
risk appetite in accordance with the Group's business strategies and
objectives, formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those
strategies, and establishing procedures and limits for the approval,
control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the
highest level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
Members included an independent non-executive director and three
executive directors. The Risk Management Committee had direct
involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite, and determined
the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to
its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and
regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures
that the management adopted in executing its business functions.
The Risk Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk
management framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks
are performed according to established policies and with appropriate
resources.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the Group’s
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial information for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed risk management
and internal controls and financial reporting matters related to the
preparation of the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

Rk EERE
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ERENGIE  LETHREZAREIEER
BE ZEBAECRREBEASEZERRE N
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RS 2 31T WRZARER - EH - &
%= KR 2 A2 P M RERR
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BEASERREEEB R EE - £8
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i BITMAREEER  AEAEEEE
HEHE 2 B K o

EREEZEeNEERRASE AR
RiFREEE RN BB T E X Ba
RARAZBREEF -EREREZESH
R AREzREREERE  LHEERD
BREABRRNMEREEERANTHA R
EXRREBRARER -

EREEE

ARABERE ETRANEI2NERIEZE
Bg EEFHMEEASEZHMEHEE
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